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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 1
to

RFQ No. 901579

for

Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) and Remanufactured Toner and Ink Cartridges

Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of Networking/Bidders Conferences Held on November 1, 2017 and November 2, 2017

	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFQ Addendum and Questions & Answers (Q&A) has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFQ Q&A will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFQ document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Page 5 of Exhibit A, BID FORM has been revised as follows:

COST SHALL BE SUBMITTED ON THE ATTACHED EXCEL BID FORM AND UPLOADED TO STRATEGIC SOURCING PORTAL.  NO ALTERATIONS OR CHANGES OF ANY KIND ARE PERMITTED.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted shall include all taxes and all other charges, including travel expenses, shall include delivery, all taxes and all other charges, but shall not include sales/use tax, and is the cost the County will pay for the three-year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.  

Page 10 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 6.e.(5), states and has been revised as follows:

6.
Cartridge Labeling and Packaging Specifications:

e.
The following items must be included in the cartridge packaging:


5.
For remanufactured cartridges, a copy of the final test print page.

Page 7 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4.a., states and has been revised as follows:

4.
High Yield Cartridges:

a. High yield cartridges shall be described as cartridges that are expected to produce approximately two or more times more printed pages than a standard cartridge contain more ink or toner, and are expected to print out 50% more pages, than a standard cartridge.  Bidders shall provide high yield cartridges and pricing as part of the Rate Sheet submitted to the County.

EXHIBIT B-1 – RATE SHEET and EXHIBIT D – ENVIRONMENTAL CERTRIFICATION has been revised. Please see attached revised forms

Responses to Questions from the Bidders Conferences and Written Questions
Q1) Will the evaluation of the bid submittals for this RFQ be a combination of both OEM and Remanufactured toner and ink cartridges?
A1) Yes.  This RFQ is for OEM and for remanufactured toner and ink cartridges.  The County will evaluate pricing as submitted by each bidder.  The Bid Form has a tab for OEM pricing and a tab for remanufactured cartridges pricing.

Q2) Will the pricing totals of the OEM and remanufactured cartridges be combined as an overall total for evaluation?
A2) Yes.  The pricing for the OEM and remanufactured cartridges will be evaluated as an overall total. 
Q3) Does the bidder have to be local to Alameda County to bid on this RFQ?
A3) Yes.  Page 4 of the RFQ, A. INTENT, states: 
The County intends to award a three year contract (with option to renew) to a pool of bidder(s) selected as the lowest responsible bidder(s) whose response meet the County’s requirements.  It is the County’s intent to increase participation of certified Small Local and Emerging Businesses (SLEB).  In order to participate herein, a business must satisfy the locality requirements and be certified by the County as a small local or emerging local business by the RFQ Response Due date (see RFQ, Section II – Calendar of Events).
Q4) Can the County please clarify whether toner and ink cartridges for multi-function devices and small, low segment (desktop) multi-function copiers will be a part of this competitive bid?
A4) Page 4 of the RFQ, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), states: 

Toner and ink cartridges for multi-function devices and small, low segment (desktop) multi-function copiers are EXCLUDED from this competitive bid.

Q5) Would the County allow for small devices that are considered as multi-function devices that uses the same toner and ink cartridges?
A5) Page 4 of the RFQ, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), states: 

Toner and ink cartridges for multi-function devices and small, low segment (desktop) multi-function copiers are EXCLUDED from this competitive bid.

Q6) Page 5 of the RFQ, Section B (SCOPE/BACKGROUND), paragraph 6, states:
At the conclusion of the bid process, the County will provide its departments/agencies a list of the three contracted toner and ink cartridge SLEB vendors.  Departments/agencies will place orders through Alcolink for their individual cartridge needs based on the Bid Forms and Rate Sheets submitted in response to this RFQ and the individual vendor’s reliability, product quality, and professionalism.
Can the County please clarify what Alcolink is?  How will County Departments place orders and how will contractors be notified of orders?
A6) Alcolink is the County’s Financial System.  Purchase Orders are generated through Alcolink.  Departments will enter a request in the system and will be converted into a Purchase Order.  GSA-Procurement Department will email the corresponding purchase order to the Contractor.
Q7) Page 6 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 3.d., states:
A warranty notice shall be included with each shipment in the form of a paper insert in box or label on package to ensure that end users are aware of the warranty and what steps to take to initiate warranty measures.  The warranty notice shall inform users to contact the contractor if there is damage to County equipment caused by use of a defective cartridge provided by the Contractor to obtain equipment service.  The warranty notice must also include current contact information for the Contractor.

The OEM and remanufactured cartridge boxes already have the warranty notices inside the manufacturer’s packaging.  Does the County require additional warranty notice(s) to be attached in each shipment?

A7) The warranty notices inside the manufacturer’s packaging will suffice as long as the notice includes current contact information for the Contractor. 
Q8) Can the County please define what would be reasonable delivery time for cartridges if next day delivery cannot be met?
A8) The County will accept a two business days delivery if next day delivery cannot be met. 
Q9) Page 6 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 3.e., states:

A diagnostic analysis shall be performed to determine the cause of the problem for any cartridge returned by the County.


Is there a specific form the manufacturer has to complete for the diagnostic analysis?

A9) No, there is no specific form.
Q10) Page 7 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4.a., states:
High yield cartridges shall be described as cartridges that are expected to produce approximately two or more times more printed pages than a standard cartridge.  Bidders shall provide high yield cartridges and pricing as part of the Rate Sheet submitted to the County.


Can the County please clarify this requirement as most high yield cartridges are not doubled?

A10) Please see revisions above on page 2.  
Q11) Page 8 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 5.f., states:


Bidders must provide verification in Exhibit D that its company (or the remanufacturing company) has a densitometer, test printers and applicable operation procedures to perform on-site cartridge testing.  If Bidder does not have a densitometer, test printers and applicable operating procedures, Bidder shall provide detailed information regarding its (or the remanufacturing company’s) on-site cartridge testing.

What type of verification should the bidder provide for a densitometer to perform on-site cartridge testing?
A11) Exhibit D, (ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION) will serve as the verification that bidder meets this requirement.  Please see Revised Exhibit D – Environmental Certification.
Q12) Page 9 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 6.d., states:
All corrugated packaging shall contain a minimum of 35% post-consumer recycled content and be labeled thereof.

Can the County clarify whether the corrugated packaging minimum requirement of 35% post-consumer recycled content pertains to both the manufacturer’s packaging and the shipping packaging?
A12) The 35% post-consumer recycled content pertains to shipping packaging. 
Q13) Page 10 of the RFQ, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 6.e.(5), states:
The following items must be included in the cartridge packaging:  For remanufactured cartridges, a copy of the final test print page.

If a final test print page is required, the cartridge will have to be opened to complete a test print.  Can the County please clarify if this should be a requirement?
A13) This requirement has been removed.     
Q14) Page 18 of the RFQ, Section M (PRICING), Item 5.a., states:
The County is soliciting a total price for this project.  The price quoted shall be the total cost the County will pay for this project including Sales, Use, or other taxes, and all other charges.

Can the County please clarify as to whether the prices the bidder will quote on the itemized spreadsheets are to include sales tax or not include sales tax? 
A14) Bidder’s quotes shall not include sales tax.  Please see Revisions on page 2.
Q15) If a bidder is not able to provide a particular remanufactured cartridge, how should the bidder state it on the bid proposal?
A15) If a bidder is not able to provide a particular remanufactured cartridge, bidder should put “N/A” for that line item on the Bid Form.  For evaluation purposes, all items marked N/A shall be assigned the price of a bidders with the highest quote.   
Q16) Page 18 of the RFQ, Section M (PRICING), Item 7., states:

Price quotes shall include any and all payment incentives available to the County.

Can the County please clarify what payment incentives include?
A16) Payment incentives available to the County means any additional rewards that are advantageous to the County.
Q17) Can the County please define the Prevailing Wages for different job classifications?
A17) Please refer to the link for the Standard Agreement, page 4, item 4 PREVAILING WAGES.  http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/standardServicesAgreement.pdf   

Pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq., Contractor shall pay to persons performing labor in and about Work provided for in Contract not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the locality in which the Work is performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for legal holiday and overtime work in said locality, which per diem wages shall not be less than the stipulated rates contained in a schedule thereof which has been ascertained and determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations to be the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for each craft or type of workman or mechanic needed to execute this contract.
Q18) Page 19 of the RFQ, Section N (AWARD), Item 1., states:
The award will be made to the lowest responsible bidder who meets the requirements of these specifications, terms and conditions.

Can the County please clarify whether the contract would be awarded to one vendor?

A18) The County intends to award a three year contract (with option to renew) to a pool of bidder(s) selected as the lowest responsible bidder(s) whose response meet the County’s requirements.

Q19) How will the County departments choose the contractor to order cartridges from?  Will the County departments see the line items from each contractor to compare pricing when they place the orders?
A19) The County will provide copy of the contract(s) and the corresponding line items and prices to all County departments.  County departments   can select from the list which contractor to order from. 
Q20) Can the County please provide a standardized rate sheet for all OEM and remanufactured toner and ink cartridges as mentioned on page 8 of Exhibit A, (REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS), Item 6?
A20) A standardized rate sheet will be provided for all OEM and remanufactured toner and ink cartridges.  Please see revision on page 1 of Exhibit B-1
Q21) Page 8 of Exhibit A, (REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS), Item 6, states:


The successful bidders will be expected to provide OEM and remanufactured 


toner and ink cartridges to all County Departments/Agencies on an as needed
basis at the quoted prices on the submitted Rate Sheet minus the stated list price 


percentage discount.
Can the County please clarify what would be considered as “percentage discount”?
A21) Percentage discount refers to the discount that is given from the manufacturer list price of any toner cartridges to be purchased by the County.
Q22) Does the County have any prevailing purchase deals with cartridge manufacturers?  Will vendors be on the list to be a part of the prevailing purchase deal?
A22) The County does not have any prevailing purchase deals with cartridge manufactures. 
Q23) Will the County consider remanufactured cartridges that has compatible parts along with manufactured parts for any of the line items?
A23) Yes.  Compatible parts that meet OEM specifications can be used to replace worn parts on a remanufactured cartridge.
Q24) Is the County asking the bidder to be a certified partner as a requirement of this bid – therefore, allowing the County a more solid assurance that the vendor is purchasing genuine OEM HP toners and not grey market, HP-branded toners?




A24) Bidder should be an authorized vendor/retailer of OEM cartridges. 
Q25) Can the County please provide the current dollar amount and the number units for the current contracts for OEM and remanufacturing cartridges?
A25) The total expenditures for fiscal year 2017 is $775,755.72 with a total of 515 cartridges. 
Q26) Does the County have requirements for the servicing of printers and copiers?
A26) No.  The County has a separate contract for servicing of printers and copiers. 
Q27) Is there a Piggy back clause in the RFQ?  Is the County anticipating that the contract would be of a piggy back status where the winning bidder could offer it to other public sector customers?
A27) There is no piggyback clause in the RFQ.  However there’s a piggy back clause in the Standard Service Agreement template found in page 20 of the RFQ, SECTION N. Award, item 9.  Link below:
http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/standardServicesAgreement.pdf
States as follows:

OTHER AGENCIES:  Other tax supported agencies within the State of California who have not contracted for their own requirements may desire to participate in this contract.  The Contractor is requested to service these agencies and will be given the opportunity to accept or reject the additional requirements.  If the Contractor elects to supply other agencies, orders will be placed directly by the agency and payments made directly by the agency.

Q28) Could the County release an unlocked Bid Worksheet in order for the bidder to add lines for the bidder’s purposes?  
A28) No.  The County will not release an unlocked bid form.  Bidders are to submit all pricing on the original bid form that was provided.  If a bidder would like to add items, they can add a separate sheet.  Please note that the County has no obligation to accept those items.
Q29) Page 8 of Exhibit A, (REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS), item 6 states:


Bidders shall add new products to the Rate Sheet quarterly.  New products shall be 


listed adjacent to other compatible cartridge types and shall include the same 

 

information as described on Exhibit A –Bid Form.

Is it possible for a bidder to offer the County, in addition to, the other cartridges pricing, a cost plus pricing scenario for new products, since the bidder does not know what the future pricing will be and the price structure?
A29) Yes, during any contract term that may result from this competitive bid process, the winning bidder(s) may offer County departments a cost plus pricing scenario for new products.  However, the bid cost evaluation will be based on the prices submitted for the specified cartridges listed on the Bid Form only. 

EXHIBIT B-1
COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

RFQ No. 901579 for Toner and Ink Cartridges
RATE SHEET

(FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY)

Bidders are required to submit a complete Rate Sheet for all OEM and remanufactured toner and ink cartridges available for purchase from its firm.  The Rate Sheet is for informational purposes only and will not be included in the evaluation of proposal cost.  High yield cartridges should be included on the Rate Sheet and designated as such.  The estimated cost per page for all cartridges should also be stated on the Rate Sheet.  The successful bidders will be expected to provide OEM and remanufactured toner and ink cartridges to all County Departments/Agencies on an as needed basis at the quoted prices on the submitted Rate Sheet minus the stated list price percentage discount.  

Bidder agrees to apply the following percentage discount to the list price of any toner cartridges purchased by the County but not specifically listed below:  ________%

Bidders are required to include a high yield cartridge option for each OEM and remanufactured cartridge.  If one does not exist, Bidder must enter “Not Available” in the “High Yield Description” column.  Bidders shall ensure all compatible high yield cartridges are listed adjacent to the compatible remanufactured cartridge on the Rate Sheet in a manner that allows County departments/agencies to conveniently compare pricing (see table below – use additional sheets as needed).

	Part Number
	Description
	Cost per Unit

	
	
	
	COMPATIABLE HIGH YIELD TONER CARTRIDGE OPTIONS 
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Description
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Cost per Unit

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Successful bidders shall notify the County when new high yield cartridges become available.  Bidders shall add new products to the Rate Sheet quarterly.  New products shall be listed adjacent to other compatible cartridge types and shall include the same information as described immediately above.

EXHIBIT D

Environmental Certification

RFQ No. 901579
for
Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) and Remanufactured Toner and Ink Cartridges

ENVIRONMENTAL CERTIFICATION

The bidder certifies under penalty of perjury the following: 

· Cartridges that they provide to the County under this contract adhere to specifications equal to or exceeding OEM cartridge specifications and approved remanufactured toner cartridge industry standards established by the Standardized Test Methods Committee (STMC).  Currently accepted standardized testing certifications include ASTM F1856-98, ASTM F2036, American National Standard Institute (ANSI) IT2.  17-95, and International Safe Transit Association (ISTA) 1A.  Bidders shall disclose the manufacturer of the remanufactured toner cartridges and must notify the County if they switch suppliers during the term of the contract.
· State the name, address, web address and principle owner of the manufacturer of remanufactured toner cartridges here.

· The manufacturer of the remanufactured toner cartridges provided to the County under this contract has employees who have completed training in the Standardized Test Methods Committee (STMC) guidelines.  List employee(s) names, date of hire, date of most recent certification date.  If none, list n/a.

· List employee(s) names, date of hire, date of most recent certification date.  If none, list n/a.

· The manufacturer of the remanufactured toner cartridges provided to the County under this contract has testing equipment available on-site to perform testing of the cartridges in accordance with ASTM, ANSI and ISTA standards related to the Standardized Test Methods Committee (STMC) guidelines, including a densitometer, test printers and applicable operation procedures to perform on-site cartridge testing.  If Bidder does not have a densitometer, test printers and applicable operating procedures, Bidder shall provide detailed information regarding its (or the remanufacturing company’s) on-site cartridge testing. 

· Provide description of manufacturers’ on-site performance testing equipment and procedure remanufactured toner cartridges.

Print Name/Title: ____________________________________________________________

Company Name:  ____________________________________________________________

Signature:             ____________________________________________________________

Date:                     _____________________________________________________________

Preparer’s Initials __________
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